
Council may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda 

                          BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                                                             
                                           February 23, 2016 
                                                                       Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 

City Council Meeting 
                     Opening 7:00 P.M. 
 

Call to Order       Next Ordinance #06-16 
  Pledge of Allegiance      Next Resolution #16-04 
  Roll Call of Council Members     Next Agenda Bill #AB16-028 
 
 

A.   Citizen Participation 
 

Time Limit of Three Minutes (Must sign up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 
 
   
B. Staff Reports 

 
 

C. Main Agenda 
 

1. RES No. 16-__:  Amending Personnel Policy – Insurance Benefit Plans 
2. Carbon River Forum – Legislative Support Letter 
3. Bid Award – North Parking Lot Project 
 

 
D. Consent Agenda 
 

4.   A.   Approve Minutes of February 9, 2016 City Council Meeting 
   B.   Claims 
 
 

E. Committee Reports  
 
5. Mayor’s Report       Johnson 
6. Administration, Finance & Public Safety    Boyle Barrett 
7. Transportation & Utilities      Tremblay 
8. Community Services      Rose 
15. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order 

 



The above meetings will be held in the Multi-Purpose Center located at 811 Main Street unless otherwise noted. 
       Last Revised February 18, 2016 

    CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com 

CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 
  
 
Feb 18  4:00 PM Community Services (MPC) - CANCELLED 
 
Feb 22  7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Feb 23  7:00 PM City Council 
 
 
Mar 1  9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Mar 1  7:00 PM City Council Study Session 
 
Mar 3  4:00 PM Community Services (MPC) 
 
Mar 7  7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Mar 8  7:00 PM City Council 
 
Mar 15 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Mar 15 7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 
 
Mar 17 4:00 PM Community Services (MPC) 
 
Mar 21 7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Mar 22 7:00 PM City Council  



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 2 9:30 Admin, Fin 

& Public Safety 
 
7  City Council Study 
Session 

3 4 5 6 

7 8 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

9 
 
7  City Council 

10 11 12 13 

14 15  
 
     PRESIDENT’S       
            DAY 
        HOLIDAY!!! 

16 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& Public Safety 

 
7 Transportation & 
Utilities 

17 
 
  

18 
 
 

19 20 

21 22 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

23 
 
7  City Council 

24 25 26 27 

28 29      

February 2016 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
  1 9:30 AM Admin, 

Finance & PS 
 
7  City Council Study 
Session 

2 3 
 
4  Community Ser-
vices 

4 5 

6 7 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

8 
 
7  City Council 

9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 9:30 AM Admin, 
Finance & PS 

 
7  Transportation & 
Utilities 

16 17  4 PM Community 
Services 

18 19 

20 21 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

22 
 
7  City Council 

23 24 25 26 

27 
 
 

28 29 30 31   

         MARCH 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 23, 2016               AB 16-028 
 
RES No. 16-__:  Amending 
Personnel Policy – Insurance Benefit 
Plans 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:   N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash    
  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Resolution 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Resolution amending provisions of Personnel Policy 6.19 that 
clarifies eligibility for City paid insurance benefit plans. The amendment eliminates City paid 
coverage of insurance benefits for part-time employees hired to work less than 30 hours per 
week. However, the amendment grandfathers in those currently employed part-time employees 
who are already enrolled in insurance plans under this policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/2/16 & 2/16/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve RES No. 16-__ Amending 
Personnel Policy 6.19 Related to Insurance Benefit Plans. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
SECTION 6.19 OF THE “CITY OF BUCKLEY PERSONNEL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL” TO AMEND 
ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE BENEFIT PLANS FOR 
PART-TIME EMPLOYEES.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the most current version of the “City of 

Buckley Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual” on August 25, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 6.19 of the “City of Buckley Personnel Policies and 

Procedures Manual” provides policy guidelines for eligibility for the City’s insurance 

benefit plans; and   

 

WHEREAS, the current policy provides that full-time status and regular part-

time status employees and their eligible dependents, working at least thirty (30) hours per 

week are eligible for “full” insurance benefits to be paid for by the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the policy also provides that part-time status employees who are 

scheduled to work less than 30 hours per week are eligible for the City’s insurance plans 

for medical, hospital, vision and dental benefits on a pro rata basis; and  

 

WHEREAS, due to the continuous increased high cost of healthcare insurance 

premiums the City has determined that the fiscal impact to the budget for providing these 

benefits to part-time positions are not sustainable; and 

 

WHEREAS, the annual cost of benefits to the City for a part-time employee 

hired to work at a half-time level who is married with two or more children and is 

estimated to be $12,744, which at a half-time rate and converted to an hourly wage is an 

additional $12.25 per hour over and above the adopted wage; and 

 



2 
 

WHEREAS, the City currently has three part-time positions in the organization 

who are eligible for benefits under this policy and one of which is currently enrolled 

under the insurance benefits plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City does not intend to reduce or eliminate this benefit for 

current enrolled part-time employees, but is envisioning adding to the part-time 

workforce in the future due to workload need and funding constraints; and 

 

WHEREAS, Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee reviewed this issue during 

consecutive meetings on 2/2/2016 and 2/16/16 and determined that a change to the policy 

would be in the best interest of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Committee therefore recommends that Section 6.19 be amended 

to eliminate City paid insurance benefit eligibility for part-time employees working less 

than 30 hours per week, however currently enrolled part-time employees should continue 

to receive coverage at the specified pro rata basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council concurs with the Committee recommendation and 

desires to amend Section 6.19 of the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual to 

eliminate City paid insurance benefit eligibility for part-time employees working less 

than 30 hours per week, but continues to provide coverage under the old policy for 

currently enrolled part-time employees; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Buckley hereby amends the Section 6.19 of the City of Buckley “Personnel Policies and 

Procedures Manual” Revision #15 as attached in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Introduced, passed and approved this _____ day of February 23, 2016. 

 
     
                                                 
      Pat Johnson, Mayor 



3 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Joanne Starr, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

  
City Attorney________________________________ 
                             POSTED:    February ___, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

6.19  Insurance Benefit Plans 

6.19.01  The city will offer to full-time status and regular part-time status 
employees and their eligible dependents, working at least thirty (30) hours per 
week, unless otherwise specified in bargaining unit agreements, insurance plans for 
medical, hospital, vision and dental benefits, to be used at the option of the 
employee, subject to the carrier's underwriting rules. Unless otherwise specified in 
bargaining unit agreements, part-time status employees who are scheduled to work 
less than 30 hours per week are eligible for the City’s insurance plans for medical, 
hospital, vision and dental benefits on a self-pay basis, subject to the carrier's 
underwriting rules; however, part-time status employees enrolled in the City’s 
insurance plans and covered under the this policy prior to February 23, 2016, which 
will continue to receive benefits under the terms of this policy that were in place 
prior to revision.   pro rata basis, to be used at the option of the employee, subject to 
the carrier's underwriting rules. The city will contribute to the costs of such plans, 
as approved by the City Council as part of the annual budget.   
 
The City may offer healthcare coverage to certain temporary and/or seasonal 
employees and their dependents on a self-pay basis. In order for a temporary 
employee to be eligible for this benefit on a self-pay basis the employee must be 
appointed to a temporary position that is intended to continue for at least 6 months 
and be eligible subject to the carrier's underwriting rules.  

 
Beginning July 1, 2012 employees shall begin contributing 10% of the cost of the 
employee(s) premium through payroll withdrawal to maintain current levels of 
healthcare coverage.  
 
Beginning July 1, 2012 employees with dependent(s) that have elected to enroll 
their dependents under the City’s sponsored healthcare coverage (i.e. spouses or 
children) shall begin contributing 12.5% of the cost of the employee(s) dependents 
premium through payroll withdrawal to maintain current levels of healthcare 
coverage for their dependents All insurance premiums will be subject to applicable 
payroll taxes as required by the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
The City will not provide duplication of health care coverage to an employee who is 
married to another employee of the City. One spouse or state registered domestic 
partner may be named as the policy holder and the other as a covered spouse or 
state registered domestic partner; OR each may be a policy holder, but in that case 
neither may be listed as a covered spouse or state registered domestic partner. Their 
children may be listed as covered dependents on one policy or the other, but not on 



5 
 

both. In this circumstance primary coverage of the dependent children may be 
dictated by the insurance under State statute. 

 
6.19.02 Newly hired regular-status employees and their dependents shall generally 
be eligible for benefit coverage within 30 days of hire, subject to enrollment and 
processing by the carrier. 
 
6.19.03 In compliance with COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation 
Act), the City offers continuing health care coverage on a self-pay basis to 
employees and their dependents following termination (for reasons other than gross 
misconduct), unpaid leave of absence, reduction in hours, retirement or death. 
These health benefits will be identical to the coverage offered to regular employees. 
For terminated employees or employees whose hours are reduced below that of a 
regular employee, the coverage may last up to eighteen (18) months or until they 
become eligible for other health insurance coverage, whichever is earlier. 
 
In the event of the employee's retirement, divorce, separation or death, the coverage 
may last up to thirty-six (36) months for the employee and/or qualified beneficiary. 
The full policy monthly premium plus a two percent (2%) administration fee will be 
paid by the employee or the beneficiary to the City or designated benefit 
administrator. The employee or beneficiary may waive all rights to continuation 
coverage according to notification procedures and time limits outlined in a 
continuation coverage "Notification of Rights" letter. 

6.19.04 Industrial Accident Insurance is provided for all employees, except full-
time uniformed employees who are covered under the LEOFF Act as set forth in 
RCW 41.26. 

 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 23, 2016               AB 16-029 
 
Carbon River Forum – Legislative 
Support Letter 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:   N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash    
  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Letter 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Multi-agency support letter to Legislator advocating continued 
funding support for the Carbon River Corridor Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/16/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Authorize the Mayor to Sign 
and Submit the Carbon River Forum – Legislative Support Letter. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 









 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:    February 23, 2016               AB16-030 
 
Bid Award - North Parking Lot 
Reconstruction Project 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts   X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X X 
Building Depart – Dean Mundy   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  $299,872.98 Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  Funds 307 and 405 Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline: Immediate Planning Depart – Kathy James   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Other –     
Attachments: Bids Tabs w/Engineering Recommendation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached City engineer’s recommendation.  Based on the discussion and 
recommendation in the City engineer’s letter the lowest responsive bidder is Puget Paving & Consulting, Inc. with 
a bid price for Schedules A and B, including sales tax, of $299,872.98.  
 
Engineering estimates for the project including both schedules was $344,621.81.  
 
Therefore staff is requesting and recommending that the Council award both Schedule A and B of the North 
Parking Lot Reconstruction Project to Puget Paving & Consulting, Inc. for the bid price of $299,872.98. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Award Both Schedule A and B of the 
North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project to Puget Paving & Consulting, Inc. 
for the Bid Price of $299,872.98. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 















City Council Minutes – February 9, 2016 
 Page 1 of 4 
 

  
City Council 

February 9, 2016 
 

 
 
Mayor Johnson called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Sundstrom, Rose, Tremblay, 
Leggett, Kyllonen, Burkett and Boyle Barrett. Also in attendance were City 
Administrator Schmidt, Police Chief Arsanto, Assistant Police Chief Northam, City Clerk 
Starr, Recreation Services Director  Boyd, and City Planner Thompson. 
 
Mayor Johnson stated that she has one addition to the agenda.  She will be adding a 
proclamation, which she will read.   
 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to approve the amended agenda.  Council 
member Rose seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Peggie Venemon – 11320 261st Avenue East, Buckley, WA 98321. 
Ms. Venemon stated that she came to talk about the Pierce County Reads Program.  This 
year, rather than selecting a book, they chose a collection of the works of author Sherman 
Alexi.  After providing a brief description of Alexi’s work, each Council member was 
given one of Alexi’s books and Ms. Venemon asked Council members to pass the books 
on to others when they are done with them.  This year the Buckley Library will be 
hosting an evening of the Pierce County Reads Program on Monday, March 7, from 4 – 6 
PM, and Sherman Alexi will be speaking at Clover Park the last Friday in April.  Mayor 
Johnson then read the Proclamation for the Pierce County Reads Program. 
 
Dennis & Diane Wink – 9506 Mundy Loss Rd, Buckley, WA 98321 
Dennis Wink assisted by his wife Diane Wink shared with the Council the earnings from 
last year’s Fright Factory Haunted House. Mr. Wink told the Council that they would like 
to meet with City Administrator Schmidt soon to discuss an extended lease for the 
property.  Their attendance is steadily growing and they have already started building the 
sets for this year. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Clerk Starr stated that once again she sent out an electronic Council packet; 
however, three of the Council e-mails kicked back as account over quota.  She requested 
once again that Council members check their emails and manage their mailboxes. 
 



City Council Minutes – February 9, 2016 
 Page 2 of 4 
 

City Planner Thompson stated that the Building & Planning Department received their 
new permit package today and all permits will soon be electronic.  Also, she has placed 
Comp Plan maps on the website. 
 
Recreation Services Director Boyd stated that they will be meeting with Grindline soon 
and getting a concrete date set for the Skate Park repairs.  Also, the Youth Center is going 
to be hosting their Spring Fling dinner auction on April 23, 2016, at 5:00 PM, and she 
encouraged everyone to save the date.  Lastly, the Senior Center has received another 
grant that will bring a ten week course to our citizens regarding aging with respect and 
dignity. 
 
City Administrator Schmidt stated that they will be meeting with Grindline next 
Wednesday and will start the construction on the Skate Park shortly after.  Also, the 
North Parking Lot Project bid opening is next Wednesday and we hope to bring a good 
bid to Council at the next meeting.  Regarding the transmission main bridge project, it is 
still being worked on. Conditions are very rough but they are scheduled to be complete in 
April. 
  
MAIN AGENDA 
 
Public Hearing:  Vacation of a Portion of 112th St. E 
 
Mayor Johnson recessed the City Council meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 
7:22 PM.  There were no speakers.  Mayor Johnson closed the Public Hearing and 
reconvened the City Council meeting at 7:25 PM.   
  
Res No. 16-03: Declaring and Disposing of Surplus Property (PD-2007-Dodge 
Charger): 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve RES No. 16-03 Declaring and 
Disposing of Surplus Property (PD – 2007-Dodge Charger).  Council member 
Tremblay seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Agreement: Annual SS911 Contract (Police): 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to approve the Law Enforcement Services 
Agreement between the City of Buckley and South Sound 911 for Dispatch and 
warrant services.  Council member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Lease Agreement: 2016 – PD Copy Machine: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to approve Lease Agreement between the 
City of Buckley Police Department and Pacific Office Automation for a new Canon 
Image Runner Advance copy Machine.  Council member Leggett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Scope of Work – G&O Bid & CM of North Parking Lot Project: 
Council member Sundstrom moved to Approve the Scope of Work to have G&O 
Perform Design, Bidding Services and Construction Management of the North 



City Council Minutes – February 9, 2016 
 Page 3 of 4 
 

Parking Lot Reconstruction Project.  Council member Boyle Barrett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Project Acceptance: 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Project: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Final Acceptance of the 2015 
Sidewalk Repair/Replacement Project.  Council member Tremblay seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Interlocal Agreement – Pierce County Flood Control Zone: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Interlocal Agreement 
Between the City and the Pierce County Flood Control District for Opportunity 
Fund Projects.  Council member Tremblay seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  
 
Consultant Agreement – AHBL SR410 Subarea Plan – Addendum #1: 
Council member Tremblay moved to Approve Addendum #1 to the Consultant 
Agreement with AHBL for completion of the SR410 Subarea Plan.  Council 
member Boyle Barrett seconded the motion.  Motion failed.  
  
Agreement – On-Call Building Inspector Services: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City and 4Leaf, Inc. for On-Call Building Inspection & Plan 
Review Services.  Council member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Recreational Services – Organizational Restructuring: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Proposed Positions and 
Organizational Restructuring of the Youth & Senior Services Department.  Council 
member Rose seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Consent Agenda. Council 
member Leggett seconded to motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of January 26, 2016 City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of February 2, 2016 City Council Study Session 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Johnson thanked Council member Tremblay for stepping 
forward as Mayor Pro Tem at the last Council meeting; she was attending a meeting in 
Olympia that evening.  Also, all Council members should have received a bulletin from 
AWC talking about the current bill that is moving through the Legislature right now 
having to do with Public Records Requests. 
 



City Council Minutes – February 9, 2016 
 Page 4 of 4 
 

Administration, Finance & Public Safety:  Council member Leggett stated that all 
topics discussed were on the agenda tonight.  Their next meeting will be Tuesday 
February 16th at 9:30 AM at City Hall. 
 
Transportation & Utilities:  Council member Tremblay stated they will be meeting next 
Tuesday February 16th at 7:00 PM at City Hall. 
 
Community Services: Council member Rose stated that their next meeting will be 
February 18th at 4:00 PM at the Multipurpose Center.  
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Sundstrom stated he would like to have computerized agendas added to 
the next Study Session agenda. 
 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to adjourn.  Council member Leggett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further the meeting was adjourned at 8:17 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 


	Council Agenda 2-23-2016
	CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST
	Calendar - February 2016
	February 2016

	Calendar - March 2016
	         MARCH

	Agenda Bill 16-028 (RES No. 16-__ - Amending Personnel Policy - Insurance Benefit Plans)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Res 16-__  Amending Personnel Policy (Insurance Benefits - P-T Employees) (15th Rev) (final)
	Agenda Bill 16-029 (Carbon River Forum - Legislative Support Letter)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Carbon River Forum - Legislative Support Letter
	Agenda Bill 16-030 (ReBid Award - North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts 
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	N Parking Lot Project - Bid Tabulations w-Eng Recommendation
	City Council Minutes 2-9-2016


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


